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839 N Jefferson St. Suite 502 Milwaukee, WI 53202    

   414. 585. 0588 (office)          ovblaw.com 414. 255. 3031 (fax) 

September 16, 2020          
 
         Emil Ovbiagele 

                     emil@ovblaw.com  
         
[via Email] 
Milwaukee Police Department, District 4  
Attn: Tracey Geniesse 
6929 W Silver Spring Drive 
Milwaukee, WI 53218 
tgenie@milwaukee.gov 

 
 

Re: Written Course of Action – Courtside Sports Bar & Grill (9012 W Silver Spring Dr.) 
 
Dear Officer Geniesse:  
 

As you know, my Firm represents the above-referenced establishment. On behalf of my 
client, we are grateful to the department for setting up the September 2, 2020 meeting that was 
attended by several officers and other representatives of the City. We found the discussions to be 
very productive and helpful. 
 

At the September 2, 2020 meeting, the department shared some of its concerns with regards 
as it relates to recent developments at the establishment. Broadly, these concerns included: (a) 
management concerns; (b) sale of food items; (c)parking; and (d) need for proactive security 
measures. Other matters addressed included some open DNS orders. At the meeting, we also 
discussed potential solutions and have taken the recommendations provided by the parties into 
consideration in developing this written course of action plan.  
 

My client fully intends on maintaining the premises in a way that promotes orderliness and safety. 
It is their mission to work with the neighbors, their Alderman’s office, and District 4 to ensure that 
their concerns are timely and adequately addressed. This letter sets forth my clients’ planned course 
of action for remedying the matters discussed. If we can provide any further information or 
documentation, or if I can answer any questions, please feel free to contact me at 414-585-0588.   

 

• New Manager.  A lot of the issues discussed were attributed to management. To that end, 
my client has recently obtained the services of its former manager, Shaun Thomas.  Mr. 
Thomas was previously the Class B Manager of the establishment before going to work 
elsewhere. However, he is back and will be reapplying for a new manager’s license. He 
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once held a license (#BMGR-0197677) that was associated with the establishment. Up 
until his departure, a lot of the new issues seemed to have been under control. By the end 
of October, we anticipate he will have an updated manager’s license on file, and I can 
provide that upon request by then. In addition, Ms. Goodson and her son, who serve as 
the business managers, plan on being at the premises more often as well. We do believe 
that consistency and a strong managerial presence is important to alleviating a lot of the 
issues we discussed.   
 

• Licensed Bartenders.   My client ensures that all their bartenders are licensed. Right now, due 
to reduced capacity, there are two primary bartenders that work at the establishment. Both 
of which have valid Class D operator licenses: Evalynn M Fowler (#BART-231045) and 
Victoria M Johnson-Luckett (#BART-230218). 

 

• Cameras. Since our meeting, my clients have updated their security system. There are 8 
cameras inside and 8 outside. This new state of the art camera system captures major angles 
of the building. Further, there is a standing order amongst all employees that, absent any 
issues, they are to provide the department with external camera footages upon reasonable 
request to assist the department in its efforts to keep the community safe. I have attached 
a picture that shows some of the exterior camera footage.  
 

• Lights.  At our meeting, the department requested that the external lights be kept on even 
when the business is not in operation. It is our understanding that the department feels 
this will help provide a well-lit area at all times and also help deter unwanted activity when 
my client’s business is closed. To this end, my client has no issues and will comply with 
this request.  

 

• Security Wands. Although there have been no incidents of violence at my client’s location, 
we believe it is important to continue improving security measures and being proactive. 
Rather than doing pat-downs, security staff will now use security wands to check patrons 
that come through the doors in the evening. Please see the attached photo. 

 

• ID Scanner. Pursuant to suggestions from the department, my clients purchased a Viage ID 
Card reader. In addition to physical ID checks, this will be used to verify the ages and 
identities of patrons that come to the establishment. Please see the attached photo.  

 

• Counter. On busier nights, my client will be employing the use of a counter to ensure that 
capacity requirements are followed. Staff members have been trained on this procedure.  

 

• New Security Company. Our client recently retained the services of “CN Private Security, 
LLC” for the provision of security and patrol services. We believe this will help deter any 
rowdy activity outside, ensure parking laws are being followed, and ensure orderly 
conducts of patrons (in and outside of the tavern). This should also alleviate some of the 
secondary issues associated with parking.  

 

• Food Dealers License.  As of September 3, 2020, my clients submitted a new application for 
a food dealers license.  
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• Non-use of Promoters. For the remainder of the year and the near future, my client will not 
be using the services of outside promoters for the marketing of its business.  

 

• DNS Orders. A portion of the outstanding DNS orders discussed stemmed from issues 
with the grease trap and the hood. As of September 15, 2020, my client retained the 
services of AD Hood Cleaning, LLC to perform services related to these matters. I have 
included a picture of the certification of performance. My client is in the process of closing 
out the remaining orders and working with DNS to get this accomplished. We anticipate 
that these will all be taken care of by October 15, 2020. 

 

• Parking. We recognize that parking is an issue in the area, in general. However, my client 
has over 15-20 parking spots. With the current COVID related limits on capacity, we feel 
there are adequate parking spaces being controlled by my client to alleviate these issues. It 
seems in recent time, a lot of the parking issues stem from a newer establishment next 
door. Be that as it may, my client has instructed its staff members to avoid parking in the 
allotted spots to ensure patrons have enough room to park on premises.  

 
My client is bent on working with your department and all stakeholders in ensuring that all 

concerns raised are timely and adequately addressed. As always, we continue to invite the input of the 
police department and other stakeholders as it pertains to ensuring a safe and thriving neighborhood 
for all. If you have any questions or concerns, please feel free to contact me.   

 

 

Very Truly Yours, 

OVB Law & Consulting, S.C. 

         /s/ 

Emil Ovbiagele, JD, MBA 
             Attorney 
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